
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
 
       CITY OF STOUGHTON     
 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589              
                     (608) 873-6459 
 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 


September __, 2022 


Memorandum of Understanding ‐ Norse Park Dugout Donation 


 


Dear Stoughton Area Baseball Association, 


Thank you for your interest in donating new dugouts at Norse Park. The City of Stoughton is excited to 


partner with the Stoughton Area Baseball Association (SABA) on this project.  This Memorandum of 


Understanding (MOU) is meant to outline specific details of the project as we move forward.  The City 


will craft a Developers Agreement that will serve as a formal document for the construction and 


eventual ownership of the dugouts.  Please read through the outline below and provide any questions or 


concerns that you may have.  We hope to address any concerns you may have ahead of signing the 


formal Developers Agreement.   


Financial Obligation and Contractors 


All outside contractors will be hired by SABA.  All labor agreements shall be between the 


contractor and SABA.  All invoices, other than in‐kind work performed by the City, shall 


be paid for by SABA.  All costs for the dugout construction materials and labor, other 


than what is contributed in‐kind from the City, shall be paid for utilizing donated funds 


from SABA.  An opinion of probable costs is included in this document.     


Insurance Requirements 


Since this work will be performed on City of Stoughton property, contractors must meet 


all applicable general liability insurance requirements set forth by the City.  The City of 


Stoughton shall also be named an additional insured on the contractor’s insurance 


policy.  A copy of the contractor Certificate of Insurance (COI) shall be approved by the 


City before the contractor can begin work.   


In‐Kind City Contributions 


The City of Stoughton agrees to provide in‐kind work for this project.  The items listed 


herein may not be all inclusive, but  are all known items that the city has agreed to 


provide.  The City will serve as the project manager for the construction of the dugouts.  


The City will coordinate the construction sequence with all contractors/volunteers hired 


by SABA.  The City will work with the masonry contractor and their supplier to put 







together structural plans for the dugout.  The City will provide all equipment to 


demolish the existing dugouts and remove the existing concrete slabs.  The city will 


prepare the site for the new concrete slabs for the dugouts.  The City will provide all 


concrete work to the dugouts in order to meet all accessibility requirements within the 


Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  The City will provide staff and equipment to erect 


the roof structure.  All roofing material will be paid for through donated funds to SABA.  


The City will provide all grading and turf restoration.  Seed shall be purchased by SABA 


as part of the project.       


 


Ownership 


After construction is complete, the City of Stoughton will retain ownership of the 


dugouts and will be responsible for all maintenance of the dugouts going forward.   


 


Norse Park Baseball Field 


As new development and the enhancement of current parks continues to progress in 


the City of Stoughton, new opportunities for playing fields may present themselves to 


the City, SABA, Merchants and the Stoughton Area School District.  It is important that 


the City is fully transparent in making it clear that the City will continue to look at 


opportunities to relocate the diamond at Norse Park as it is an incompatible use for 


Norse Park. The diamond at Norse Park causes issues such as the baseball diamond 


being locked and not being available to use by the general public, lack of parking, and 


lack of appropriate buffering to adjacent residential homes. The timeline for relocation 


is unclear at this time. When the opportunity presents itself, SABA, the Stoughton Area 


School District and the Merchants are expected to be partners with the City in the new 


baseball facility.  


 


Again, thank you for your generous donation.  Partnerships such as this are imperative as we continue to 


make Stoughton a great place to live, work and recreate.   Please let me know if you have any questions 


or concerns as we move forward.     


Sincerely, 


 


 
 


Tim Swadley, Mayor 
City of Stoughton 
207 S. Forrest St.  
Stoughton, WI 53589 
608‐480‐3031 
 








 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Tuesday, August 16, 2022 at 6:00 pm  
 


In-Person Option: Stoughton Council Chambers (321 S. Fourth Street)  
 
Virtual Option: Join Zoom Meeting Virtual Option: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86523111877?pwd=b1lWK1lmZm9TOHRRd2pqSU11K0xuZz09 


 


 
Members Present: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Joyce Tikalsky, Frank Raff, Ethan Scheiwe, Mayor Tim 
Swadley and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Guest: Jordan Oosterhouse, Aaron Welsh 
Meeting called to order at 6:01 pm.  
 
Approval of Minutes from July 19, 2022  
Motion by Caravello to approve the minutes from July 19, 2022 as presented, seconded by Hirsch. Motion 
carried unanimously 
 
Communication-none 
Directors Report-Director Glynn shared updates from the Director’s Report.   
 
Park Design Guidelines 
Discussion centered on the point system and the criteria. The committee agreed to bring ideas to the 
September meeting. 
 
No action taken 
 
Mandt Park Utility License 
Director Glynn shared the backstory to Alliant Energy wanting the license which included the due 
diligence for the term, license amount, and routing. Aaron Welsh from Alliant Energy fielded questions 
from committee members. 
 
Motion by Caravello to recommend approval of the license as presented, seconded by Raff. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
Future Agenda Items 
 
Bicycle Federation logo promotion 
Park Design Guidelines  
Bike Repair Station 
 
Motion to adjourn by Caravello, seconded by Scheiwe. 
Motion carried unanimously at 7:23 pm 








 


 


 


 


City of Stoughton 


Park Design Guidelines 


Updated 8-17-22 
  







 


Contents 
Overview ....................................................................................................................................................... 4 


Purpose ..................................................................................................................................................... 4 


Mission Statement .................................................................................................................................... 4 


Goals ......................................................................................................................................................... 4 


General Planning and Design Policies ........................................................................................................... 4 


Site Selection and Planning Principles .......................................................................................................... 5 


Park Design and Development Guidelines .................................................................................................... 5 


Community Parks ...................................................................................................................................... 6 


Description ............................................................................................................................................ 6 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ............................................................................................ 6 


Features & Amenities to Consider ........................................................................................................ 6 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ............................................................................................................. 7 


Neighborhood Parks ................................................................................................................................. 7 


Description ............................................................................................................................................ 7 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ............................................................................................ 7 


Features & Amenities to Consider ........................................................................................................ 7 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ............................................................................................................. 8 


Mini Parks ................................................................................................................................................. 8 


Description ............................................................................................................................................ 8 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ............................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Consider ........................................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ............................................................................................................. 8 


Special-Use Parks ...................................................................................................................................... 8 


Description ............................................................................................................................................ 8 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ............................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Consider ........................................................................................................ 9 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ............................................................................................................. 9 


Trail Corridors & Greenways ..................................................................................................................... 9 


Description ............................................................................................................................................ 9 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ............................................................................................ 9 


Features & Amenities to Consider ........................................................................................................ 9 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ........................................................................................................... 10 







 


Natural Areas .......................................................................................................................................... 10 


Description .......................................................................................................................................... 10 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines .......................................................................................... 10 


Features and Amenities to Consider ................................................................................................... 10 


Features and Amenities to Avoid ........................................................................................................ 11 


Guidance for Developers ............................................................................................................................ 11 


Design and Review Process for City Parks .............................................................................................. 11 


Site Evaluation Report ............................................................................................................................ 13 


Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting .......................................................................................... 14 


Minimum Criteria ................................................................................................................................ 14 


Base Criteria ........................................................................................................................................ 14 


Bonus Criteria ...................................................................................................................................... 15 


 


  


  







 


Overview  
Purpose 
The purpose of this document is to provide direction to staff, landscape architects, contractors and 
developers in the design, construction, and maintenance of public parks, open space, trails, and 
recreation facilities in the City of Stoughton. The guidelines will be used as a tool in evaluating 
submittals for all new parks and any significant changes to parks.  


Only improvements where Stoughton Parks and Recreation and/or Stoughton Public Works will assume 
operations and maintenance activities are subject to these guidelines.   


Mission Statement  
The City of Stoughton seeks to provide a park and recreation system that will: meet the needs of our 
current residents and future generations; preserve and protect the City’s open space, water, historical 
and natural resources; and provide a park and recreation program that is designed to enhance our 
quality of life.  


Goals 
• Provide guidance to developers for park site selection and development 
• Create a standard for parks, park equipment, and amenities 


General Planning and Design Policies 
The following policies are intended to provide guidance on the planning and design of all parks and 
recreation facilities in Stoughton: 


• Incorporate public input into park master planning and design to ensure that community needs 
and issues are addressed. Public outreach should include nearby neighbors, likely park users, 
community members, and partner agencies in the park design process. 


• Involve maintenance and recreation program staff in the design process so that maintenance 
and programming requirements are considered during site selection, design, and development. 


• Consider the layout of the surrounding neighborhood when placing park amenities. Situate 
lighting and noise-producing amenities away from the neighboring homes to minimize conflicts.  


• Locate amenities such as playground equipment, picnic shelters, and basketball courts to 
provide visibility from adjoining streets which will promote safety, minimize vandalism, and 
encourage use.  


• Incorporate American with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines into all new parks to facilitate 
site access, circulation, and facility use for people of all ages and abilities.  


• Incorporate new technologies, sustainable design, and conservation-smart elements into all 
park and recreation facility designs to facilitate operational efficiency. This commitment may be 
demonstrated through the use of green building technologies, alternative power, low water-use 
fixtures, automated sport field lighting, and storm water treatment techniques. 


• Incorporate public art and interpretive elements into parks to contribute to park identity and 
character. Interpretative elements can be incorporated into parks of all types to raise 
community awareness about the local environment and history. Art elements are well-suited for 
community parks, citywide parks, urban open space, or other community-serving areas. 







 


• Conduct a cost impact analysis prior to design and development of all new major recreation 
facilities. 


Site Selection and Planning Principles  
Consistency  


Choose park and trail locations that are consistent with the spirit and intent of the Department’s 
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and with other policies 
and plans adopted by City Council.  


Environmental Protection  


Locate parks and open spaces in coordination with surrounding new developments, where reasonable, 
to preserve and protect the water quality and wildlife habitat of riparian corridors, wetlands, and flood 
plains and to integrate preserved open space and natural areas into developed areas for both visual 
diversity and the definition of neighborhood character. Protect and enhance natural resources that have 
outstanding recreation, conservation and educational value to the public.  


Accessibility and Connectivity  


Connections are the key to creating an open space system that integrates all parts of the city into a 
cohesive whole. Benefits of trail development range from the preservation of linear open spaces to the 
promotion of active, healthy lifestyles to the creation of an alternative corridor for transportation. 
Ideally, parks and open space should be physically connected to provide continuous ribbons of green 
space woven throughout the city, maximizing value to wildlife and, where appropriate, to commuters 
and recreational users.  


1. Residents should be able to leave their homes and readily access the parks and open space 
system in their neighborhoods 


2. Design bicycle and pedestrian transportation systems for efficiency and connectivity around all 
parks and open spaces.  


Park Design and Development Guidelines  
Park design and development guidelines are provided for each park classification. These guidelines 
include the following for each classification: 


Description 


A definition is presented to describe each park type. This section also describes the typical length of use 
and means of travel to each type of park. 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 


Include recommendations for site size, site access, street frontage, parking, etc. 


Features & Amenities to Consider 


These elements should be considered during the master planning and design process for inclusion in all 
new parks of this classification.  







 


Features and Amenities to Consider and Avoid 


These elements are not compatible with the park classification and should not be included in the design 
and development of these types of parks.  


 


Community Parks  
Description 
Community parks are areas of diverse recreational activity and serve several neighborhoods. Community 
parks are typically 10 acres or larger but may vary depending on facilities offered.  


Typical community park users: 


• Come from within 1 to 2 miles of the park; 
• Arrive by auto, bicycle, or foot; and  
• Visit the park for 1 to 3 hours 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• At least two-thirds of the site should be available for active recreation use. Adequate buffers or 


natural open space areas should separate active recreation use from homes.  
• The site should be visible from adjoining streets and have a minimum of 50% of street frontage. 
• Parking requirements should be based upon the facilities provided at the site. Generally, 50 off-


street spaces per ballfield are required, plus an additional 5 spaces per acre of active use areas.  
• Access to the site should be provided via a collector or arterial street with sidewalks and bicycle 


lanes, and trail corridor or greenway system when possible.   


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Playgrounds  
• Open turf area for unstructured play 
• Designated sports fields for baseball, softball, and soccer. Fields may be in a complex within the 


park.  
• Looped pathway system 
• Large picnic shelters 
• Permanent restrooms  
• Tennis and Pickleball courts. Courts may be in a complex within the park.  
• Basketball courts 
• Field lighting 
• Skate park 
• Splash pad  
• Off-leash dog area 
• Community gardens  
• Concessions or vendor space  
• Interpretive signage 
• Public art 
• Indoor recreation center 







 


• Landscape improvements including tree planting  
• Storage or maintenance buildings; if visible, these should be architecturally compatible with 


other park elements. Any exterior work areas should be screened from view.  
• Off-Street Parking  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• N/A 


 


Neighborhood Parks  
Description 
Neighborhood parks serve a variety of age groups within a limited area or neighborhood. Neighborhood 
parks typically include areas for active recreational use such as field or court games and playgrounds. 
Typical size is between 3 to 10 acres. 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• At least 50% of site should be relatively level and usable providing space for both active and 


passive uses.  
• The site should be visible from adjoining streets and have a minimum of 50% of street frontage. 
• Access to the site should be provided via local street with sidewalks and trail corridor/greenway 


system when possible. Neighborhood parks fronting on arterial streets should be discouraged.  
• On-street parking should be provided. Larger sites may include off-street parking with the 


amount depending on the facilities provided at the site.  
• Active and noise producing facilities, such as basketball courts, should be located at least 100 


feet from nearby homes or property zoned for residential use.  
• Each neighborhood is different and some consideration to making neighborhood parks different 


is important.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Playgrounds  
• Open turf area for unstructured play 
• Basketball (full or half) court 
• Volleyball court 
• Multi-use fields for practice  
• Picnic tables 
• Small picnic shelter  
• Pathway connecting park elements  
• Interpretive signage  
• Natural area (if present at site) 
• Portable or permanent restrooms  
• Landscape improvements including tree planting  
• On-street parking 


 







 


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• Horticulture or annual plantings unless sponsored and maintained by a neighborhood or 


community group 
• Indoor recreation center  
• Wading pools and similar types of amenities that require staff supervision or highly specialized 


maintenance  
• Sports fields for league play  
• Off-street parking  


 


Mini Parks  
Description 
Mini parks are used to address limited, isolated, or unique recreation needs of concentrated populations 
such as tots or senior citizens. Typical size is 1 acre or less but parks may be categorized as mini parks 
simply based on the type and quantity of facilities they offer.  


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• All or most of site should be relatively level providing space for both active and passive uses.  
• The site should have at least 25% of park boundary on street frontage.  
• Access to the site should be provided via local street with sidewalks.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Open air shelter or small event space 
• Children’s playground including specialized play equipment such as tot lots  
• Half basketball court  
• Community garden 
• Landscape improvements including tree planting  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• Off-street parking 
• Permanent restrooms  


 


Special-Use Parks  
Description  
Special use parks are areas for specialized or single purpose recreational activities such as golf courses, 
campgrounds, nature centers, and skate parks. They may also be used to designate areas that are 
primarily used as event space, general gathering areas, expanded trail corridors, or plaza space. There 
are no set standards for size.  


Site Selection & Development Guidelines  
• Site size depends on intended use, but should be sufficient to accommodate the special use and 


necessary support facilities.  
• Access to the site should generally be provided by means of a collector arterial street.  







 


• The site should connect to trail corridors if possible 


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Special use facility or facilities  
• Portable or permanent restrooms (depending on facilities and anticipated amount of site use) 
• Landscape improvements including tree planting  
• On-street or off-street parking  
• Pathway system 
• Seating  


Features & Amenities to Avoid  
• Uses that conflict or detract from the special use 


 


Trail Corridors & Greenways  
Description 
Trail corridors and greenways include developed, landscaped corridors and more natural, less-
developed greenways that follow linear features such as abandoned railroad rights-of-way, canals, 
power lines, creeks and streams, and other elongated features. 


Typical trail and greenway users: 


• May come from throughout the city; 
• Arrive by auto, bicycle, or foot; 
• May use the trail and greenway to travel to a park or other community site; and  
• May visit the trail for one or more hours 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• Trail corridors should generally follow continuous special feature strips, with a minimum 


corridor width of 50 feet. 
• Trail corridors should link to and be incorporated to neighborhood and community parks to 


provide a linear park system.  
• Trail corridors should link to regional trail systems.  
• Due to the shape, configuration, and potential for user noise in these parks, user impacts on 


adjoining neighbors should be considered. Fences or landscaping may be used to provide some 
privacy for neighbors, but the provision of these features also should consider user safety.  


• Paved pathways should be designed to accommodate maintenance and patrol vehicles.  
• The amount and type (on-street or off-street) of parking provided at trailheads will depend on 


facilities at the site and anticipated trail use.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Paved pathways 
• Viewpoints 
• Seating areas 
• Picnic tables 







 


• Wayfinding signage 
• Trailhead or entry kiosk  
• Landscaped areas, ornamental plantings, turf areas 
• Maintained natural vegetation 
• Fences, landscaping, or other features to control access near adjoining residential areas 
• Parking at major trailheads  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• Active use facilities such as sport fields and paved courts (only in trail corridor areas) 


Natural Areas 
Description  
Natural areas may preserve or protect environmentally sensitive areas, such as wildlife habitats, stream 
and creek corridors, or unique and/or endangered plant species. Public access may be limited as these 
sites, white often include wetlands, steep hillsides, or other similar spaces. Some natural areas may be 
managed secondarily to provide passive recreation opportunities.  


Typical recreation user of natural areas: 


• Comes from throughout the city; 
• Arrives by auto, bicycle, or foot; 
• Uses a trail within the natural area; and  
• Visits the area for an extended time 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• Site size should be based on natural resource needs. Acreage should be sufficient to preserve or 


protect the resource.  
• Emphasis for acquisition should be on lands offering unique features that have the potential to 


be lost to development. 
• An analysis should be made to determine if unique qualities and conditions exist to warrant 


acquisition.  
• Development and site improvements should be kept to a minimum, keeping the park’s emphasis 


on the natural environment, interpretive features, and educational facilities. 
• Natural open space areas should be managed and maintained for a sense of solitude, 


separation, or environmental protection.  
• Site use should be limited to the numbers and types of visitors the area can accommodate while 


still retaining its natural character and the intended level of solitude.  
• Where feasible, public access and use of these areas should be encouraged, but environmentally 


sensitive areas should be protected from overuse.  
• Off-street parking should be considered for larger natural areas if a trail is located within the 


site. The amount will depend upon the anticipated trail use. Otherwise, on-street parking should 
be provided.  


Features and Amenities to Consider 
• Interpretive signage 







 


• Small picnic shelter 
• Limited picnic areas 
• Trail and pathway system  
• Trailhead or entry kiosk 
• Viewpoints 
• Interpretive or education facilities  
• Portable or permanent restrooms (depending on facilities and anticipated amount of site use) 
• On-street or off-street parking (depending on anticipated amount of site use) 


Features and Amenities to Avoid 
• Depends on site 


Guidance for Developers 
Sustainable communities include parks and open spaces where residents and visitors can enjoy 
recreation, connect with nature, and gather with neighbors. Thanks to the foresight of and vision of 
community leaders, citizens, and land developers, Stoughton boasts an extensive park system. To 
continue with this standard, a parkland dedication is required for developments.  


The City depends on neighborhood and community parks to meet the recreational needs of its citizens. 
Land development should meet the needs of the residents. These classes of parks are dedicated when 
land is developed and are the basis of the sections below.  


Design and Review Process for City Parks 
The process described below is the typical sequence of reviews conducted with the City of Stoughton’s 
Director of Parks & Recreation and the consultant. This process encompasses the majority of projects 
and will serve as a general framework for providing direction regarding the specifics of the design and 
construction documents. The outline below is the basic format and can be adapted as needed for special 
case scenarios. Private sector development, renovation, or special use areas should follow this process 
to the closest extent possible. Other services and procedures may be required depending on the scope 
of the project.  


Nothing in this document shall be construed as a requirement or endorsement for the consultant to 
provide services for white they are not qualified or appropriately licensed. The consultant shall exercise 
their professional judgement regarding design specifics. All projects shall conform to local, state, and 
federal codes, laws, and ordinances.  


1. Scoping/Programming Meeting  
 
This meeting will occur during the scoping phase, and prior to the execution of a consultant’s 
conceptual plan for the development is completed. The Parks and Recreation Director will 
convey the needs outlined in the city’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, city’s 
Comprehensive Plan, county’s Park and Open Space Plan, and other relevant plans. The City will 
also provide any available information regarding site selection criteria and the Site Evaluation 
Report.  
 


2. Site Selection Review  







 


 
The consultant will prepare the Site Evaluation Report for this meeting with the Parks and 
Recreation Director. The intent at this time will be to review possible site selections for the 
parkland within the development. These conceptual plans will be sketch quality, fairly abstract 
diagrams that demonstrate the location, arrangement, size and spacing of the park. The 
intention is to identify the opportunities and constraints of various layouts. Once a site is 
selected, it will need to be approved by the Parks & Recreation Committee.  
 


3. Park Master Plan Review  
 
The consultant will prepare schematic design drawings which will setup the preliminary 
arrangement of programmatic and physical components, including hardscape elements, 
accessibility, circulation, drainage, grades and slopes, planting scheme, furnishings, and play 
equipment. This is intended to be a collaborative process and based on the complexity of the 
project, there may be several iterations of schematic design solutions. The reviews may include 
sketch quality drawings or hardline drawings.  
 
Once a schematic design is resolved, the consultant shall prepare a final line drawing. If the 
project scope includes a public meeting, the consultant will prepare rendered presentation 
graphics. A budget work sheet with realistic cost estimates for any site improvements must be 
included with the plan. All Park Master Plans must be adopted by City Council. 
 


4. Design Development/30% & 60% Construction Documents  
 
The consultant will prepare a set of drawings that will create the framework for the final 
drawings and that start filling in the specifics of the design. A meeting will be held to review the 
progress of the 30% and 60% construction drawings, and will ascertain that the schedule and 
budget of the project is on track, the intent of the design is being followed, and any issues are 
being remedied.   


 


5. 90% Construction Documents  
The consultant will prepare and submit a set of construction drawings to the 90% complete 
stage. The drawings shall be prepared to a level that is considered biddable and buildable. A 
meeting will be held to review the submittal to ascertain that all details and specifications 
required are included in the drawings. This will allow the City to identify any particulars that 
need clarification or correction.  
 
A preliminary cost estimate shall also be prepared by the consultant at this stage.  
 
If the project will be publicly bid, the consultant shall prepare and submit a contract manual and 
associated bidding documents to the Parks and Recreation Director.  
  


6. Final Documents for Construction Documents and Pricing/Bidding  


Commented [DG1]: The planning process for new parks 
has not had approved Master Plan reports in the past. They 
have been conceptual plans without City Council approval. 


Commented [DG2]: This is needed and was not done 
when Nordic Ridge Park was developed.  


Commented [DG3]:  







 


After approval of the 90% plans, specifications and estimate, the consultant will prepare and 
submit final construction documents.  


 
The consultant will coordinate the distribution of plan sets, participate in the pre-bid meeting, 
review the bids, prepare a bid tabulation, and a recommendation of award, and verify the 
contract and agreement documents.  
 


7. Pre-Construction Meeting  
 
Prior to the start of construction, all parties will meet to review the specifics of the construction 
process including the schedule for construction.  


 
 
Site Evaluation Report 
Once a site within a development is selected by the developer for the parkland dedication, the 
developer should prepare a site evaluation report. The report shall include and follow the following 
format: 


1. Title Page  
 


2. Executive Summary  


The executive summary summarizes the type and size of the planned park; briefly describes the 
sites; Indicated which site was selected and the rationale for choosing the selected site.  


3. Site Selection Process 


Explains the site selection criteria and the criteria rating and weighting schemes. Include the 
following graphics in this section: 


o Context map showing site(s) and its immediate surroundings 
o Location map showing all of the sites that were considered and key landmarks or 


reference points such as major streets 
o Aerial photography of each site 
o Photographic panoramas  
o Site topographic map  


 
4. Comparative Evaluation of Candidate Sites 


Describe the strengths and weaknesses of each individual site. Include the following graphics: 


o Site evaluation matrix  
o Tabulated data summarizing the individual site evaluations allowing for comparison 


among the alternative sites 
 


5. Conclusion  







 


Briefly summarize the site selected, process used, and determination.  


6. References 


Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting  
This site selection process is used for the continuing acquisition of open space for new parks and public 
recreation areas. 


Minimum Criteria  
All sites must meet all of the minimum “base” or threshold criteria listed below to be considered for 
further evaluation. This step ensures the sites meet at least the minimum standards for: 


Site Size 


The minimum land dedication must provide 90% of the land required per the parkland dedication 
requirement. Trail corridors are counted towards the parkland dedication requirement. Storm water 
retention ponds located within a park do not count towards the land dedication.  


Slopes 


Land dedicated for parkland shall have areas with slopes of 5% or less in 10% of the parkland for a 
neighborhood park and/or community park. Land can be graded by the developer to provide less slope. 
The area with slopes less than 5% must be adjacent to a public roadway.  


Contiguous Land  


Land shall be dedicated in a contiguous parcel. An exception to this is if the development is fragmented 
by an arterial street, highway, or railroad.  


Frontage  


Should be fronted on 50% of border by streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land with no rear 
residential lots adjacent to the park.  


Existing Conditions  


The site shall not be encumbered by overhead utility lines, easements of any type, unstable soils, 
floodplains, wetlands, or toxic conditions which may limit the opportunity for park and recreation 
development.  


Pedestrian and Bikeway Connectivity  


Parks and other major points of interests such as schools should be connected by an off-road trail 
corridor. The City’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan conceptually outlines trail routes and 
should be taken into consideration when planning routes. Regional trail connections shall be protected 
and be incorporated into the park layout when necessary. The regional trail map can be found in Dane 
County’s Parks & Open Space Plan.   


 
Base Criteria  
Dedication Percent (30 Points) 


Commented [DG4]: This will help staff and alderpersons 
judge parkland dedication for developments.  


Commented [DG5]: What is the acceptable amount? 
Developers may need some flexibility for their development 
to work and they are required to pay the park fee in lieu of.  


Commented [DG6]: Slopes of 5% or less allow for ADA 
accessibility which is needed for programmed features of 
the park such as restrooms, playgrounds, and sport courts.  


Commented [DG7]: I changed the wording for this too.  







 


90 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 5 point  


91-99 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 15 points 


100 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 30 points 


 


Slopes (15 points)  


Slopes of 5% or less in 50% or more of the parkland for a neighborhood park and/or a community park 
are met = 15 points 


Slopes of 5% or less in 25-49% of the parkland for a neighborhood park and/or a community park are 
met = 10 points 


Slopes of 5% or less in 10-24% of the parkland for a neighborhood and/or a community park are met = 5 
points 


Frontages (25 points) 


80-100% of frontage border are public streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land with no rear 
residential lots adjacent to the park = 25 points  


60-79% of frontage border are public streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land with no rear 
residential lots adjacent to the park = 15 points  


50-59% of frontage border are public streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land with no rear 
residential lots adjacent to the park = 5 points  


 


Connectivity (30 points) 


Park is connected to other parks with off-road trail = 5 point 


Park is connected with 50-75-foot-wide off-road trail corridor with vegetation = 15 points 


Park is connected with a 75+ foot wide off-road trail corridor with vegetation = 30 points  


 


Bonus Criteria 
Park size is over 10 acres = 5 points 


Park can be expanded with future development = 5 points  


Historical or cultural resources on-site = 10 points 


Relatively undisturbed sites supporting significant and diverse plant and wildlife habitat = 10 points 


Waterfront access = 5 points  


Healthy, established, mature, and non-invasive trees = 5 points   Commented [DG8]: This will need to be discussed and 
refined 







 


Land dedication is over the parkland dedication requirement by 10% = 5 points  


 


 


 







Park Design Guideline Point Test


Park Base Points Bonus Points Total Points
Park Size  Over 10 acres Historical/Cultural Resources Significant & Diverse Habitat Waterfront Access Healthy, Established, Mature, & Non-Invasive Trees Park is Expandable Land Dedication Over 10%


30 (100%) 15 (91-99%) 5 (90%) 15 (50+%) 10 (25-49%) 5 (10-24%) 25 (80-100%) 15 (60-79%) 5 (50-59%) 30 (75+ Foot Trail Corridor) 15 (50-75 Foot Corridor) 5 (Off-Road Trail) 5 10 10 5 5 5 5 100 Max 40 Max 140 Max
Bjoin 30 0 0 15 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 70 5 75 Land was donated, ~87% frontage
Dunkirk 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 50 5 55 ~50% frontage
East Side 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 60 5 65 ~64% frontage
Lowell 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 5 5 0 60 15 75 ~71% frontage
Nordic Ridge 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50 0 50 ~28% frontage
Norse 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45 0 45 ~36% frontage
Schefelker 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 10 0 5 0 0 45 20 65 ~0.5% frontage
Veterans 30 0 0 0 0 5 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 0 0 60 10 70 ~84% frontage, ~14% slopes
Virgin Lake 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75 0 75 ~22% frontage
Westview Ridge 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45 0 45 ~40% frontage
51 West (East) 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 15 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75 0 75
51 West (West) 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 5 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 65 0 65
KPW 30 0 0 15 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 5 5 0 0 0 5 5 0 75 15 90
Stonecrest 30 0 0 15 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 5 5 0 0 0 5 0 0 65 10 75
Magnolia Springs 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 5 0 0 10 0 5 0 5 50 20 70 ~60% frontage


Base Score Bonus Score Total Score
Bjoin 70 5 75
Dunkirk 50 5 55
East Side 60 5 65
Lowell 60 15 75
Nordic Ridge 50 0 50
Norse 45 0 45
Schefelker 45 20 65
Veterans 60 10 70
Virgin Lake 75 0 75
Westview Ridge 45 0 45
51 West (East) 75 0 75
51 West (West) 65 0 65
KPW 75 15 90
Stonecrest 65 10 75
Magnolia Springs 50 20 70


Dedication Percent Connectivity
Base Criteria Bonus Criteria


Slopes Frontages







    e





		Park Design Guidelines

		Overview

		Purpose

		Mission Statement

		Goals



		General Planning and Design Policies

		Site Selection and Planning Principles

		Park Design and Development Guidelines

		Community Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Neighborhood Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Mini Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Special-Use Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Trail Corridors & Greenways

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Natural Areas

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features and Amenities to Consider

		Features and Amenities to Avoid





		Guidance for Developers

		Design and Review Process for City Parks

		Site Evaluation Report

		Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting

		Minimum Criteria

		Base Criteria

		Bonus Criteria







		Point Test 81722

		Sheet1








 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members: 
 
 
CC:   


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Tuesday, September 20, 2022 at 6:00 pm 
This is a hybrid meeting with the option of meeting virtually and in-person. Please 
use the information below to attend:  
 
In-Person Option:  
 
Stoughton Council Chambers (321 S. Fourth Street) 
 
Virtual Option: 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88211375350?pwd=QVZwZVExRERBSGIwUFNiMFlTVkN
0QT09  
 
Meeting ID: 882 1137 5350 
Passcode: 525322 
One tap mobile 
+13017158592,,88211375350#,,,,*525322# US (Washington DC) 
+13092053325,,88211375350#,,,,*525322# US 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
 
Meeting ID: 882 1137 5350 
Passcode: 525322 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kelEaeGgsF  
 


   
 
 
 
Regina Hirsch, Phil Caravello, Frank Raff, Joyce Tikalsky, Jim Brandt, Ethan Scheiwe,  
Tim Swadley 


 
Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,  
Deb Waterstone, Sue Strandlie , Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel, Council 
Members 
 
 
  
 
 
 


 
Item #   CALL TO ORDER 
1   Call to Order    



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88211375350?pwd=QVZwZVExRERBSGIwUFNiMFlTVkN0QT09

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88211375350?pwd=QVZwZVExRERBSGIwUFNiMFlTVkN0QT09

https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kelEaeGgsF





 
2 Approval of Minutes from August 16, 2022 
 
3 Consent Agenda 
 Member Communications 
 Guest Presentations    
 Director’s Report  
  
Item #   OLD BUSINESS     
4   Park Design Guidelines (Discussion & Action) 
    
Item #   NEW BUSINESS      
5   Norse Park Baseball Diamond Dugout Project (Discussion & Action) 
 
6   Future Agenda Items 
   River Park Final Design  
 
Item #   ADJOURNMENT  








Director’s Report 
September 2022 


Riverfront Project 


- We didn’t receive the grant for the Mandt Park improvements. I had a meeting on August 22 to 
discuss the grant application with the DNR. They said it was a very competitive cycle and they 
had an abnormal amount of lakefront and riverfront projects which rank high. They told me that 
I maximized our point value and one thing we could do this coming year is to amend the TIF 
from the riverfront to include some improvements. This would give us an additional two points 
(we were one point short of being funded). With how competitive these grants are, the City 
should be including park and trail improvements into the TIFs.   


- The public comment period ended for the Army Corp and they sent us the comments. Most of 
the comments have been addressed previously. We will be working on our response over the 
next couple of weeks.  


- I wrote a memo regarding the Municipal Flood Control Grant award and contract for City 
Council.  


Virgin Lake Trail 


- We received the preliminary trail alignment for the sections between Jackson St and 51 West.  
- I sent the plans to the Virgin Lake Dr Condo Association and told them that I could attend a 


future meeting to discuss the trail.  
- A condo owner is concerned about the tree removals needed for the trail between Roby Rd and 


51 West. I walked the trail with her and Dan Schmitt from MSA. We identified one large oak tree 
that would be directly in the middle of the trail. I told the condo owner that if we got an 
easement that we could protect the tree by moving the trail. The tree is directly behind her 
house and she sounded amicable about the easement. Other trees impacted were not 
significant. The older oak trees in that area have branches that extend horizontally, so it was 
probably a more open savanna in the distant past. There are a lot of squirrels in the area due to 
the black walnut, oak, and buckeye trees.  


- I took a look at the 2022 DNR’s Recreational Trails grant program and mocked the point total for 
the project. The sections between Jackson St and Roby Rd score more favorably than the section 
between Roby Rd and 51 West due to them being classified as reconstruction projects. Based on 
2022 scoring and what was funded, the sections between Jackson St and Roby Rd would have 
been funded. However, their point totals would have been right at the funding line. This is 
another instance where if they were included in the TIF plan, then they would be comfortably in 
the funded category. The section between Roby Rd and 51 West is not a good fit for the 
program. The better fit would be the DOT TAP grant, but I’m unsure if it would be funded or not 
as it’s extremely competitive and structured for more urban areas.    


51 West Master Plans  


- We had the neighborhood stakeholder meeting on August 30th. There were no real concerns 
about the park. The property owner adjacent directly to the east of the east side park wanted a 
vegetative buffer to delineate his property from the park. It was already in the concept plan with 
native vegetation. There were some minor concerns with the overall development and I 
directed them to the Planning Department. They were appreciative of the open line of 
communication.  







Director’s Report 
September 2022 


Recreation & Youth Center  


- We will be having movies in the park every Friday night in September. We had a few rainouts 
earlier in the season and moved them to September. The crowd on September 9th was our 
largest so far of the season. We will probably split the locations between Rotary Park and Nordic 
Ridge Park next season. Some people commented that they would like to see more events on 
the east side of Stoughton. Rotary Park would allow us to store the equipment at the Opera 
House and it is walkable for people who live on the east side.   


- Gazebo Musikk had their final concert on September 1st.  
- I attended the Friends of the Youth Center meeting on September 8th.  
- I completed the monthly report for the Youth Center.  
- Holly Salimes, Recreation Assistant, left at the end of September to go back to college. She did a 


great job during her time with us. The position is currently open.  


Misc.  


- I had a meeting with Ben Lyman from the Madison Area MPO regarding grant funding for the 
Highway 51 underpass. One of the suggestions he made was to create a pedestrian and bike 
safety survey to document any safety issues or perceived safety issues. The draft survey is 
attached to this report. The MPO believes that the DOT should be cost sharing with the City on 
the underpass.  


- MSA had a vendor that uses lidar using drones to map out Lowell Park for the south loop trail. 
The vendor had reached out to them about doing a demo for free. The thought would be to use 
it in help assisting with the trail placement and possibly avoiding wetlands. Link that explains 
lidar - https://oceanservice.noaa.gov/facts/lidar.html. Link to the Lowell Park work - 
DroneDeploy.  


- I’ve been taking an online certificate course through Indiana University for continuing education 
units to maintain my professional certifications.  


- We had a meeting with the Stoughton Area Baseball Association, Stoughton Merchants (home 
talent baseball), and Public Works to discuss the future of baseball facilities in Stoughton and 
the dugout project at Norse Park.  


- Constructed poster boards for the Sustainable Committee open house.  


 


 



https://oceanservice.noaa.gov/facts/lidar.html

https://www.dronedeploy.com/app2/sites/6303dec6526e0a41e523db69/maps/6306962e9790a230d685b2c7?jwt_token=eyJ0eXAiOiJKV1QiLCJhbGciOiJIUzUxMiJ9.eyJpZCI6IjYzMDY5Njg0ZWI0ODM4YWUxOGQwNDQ2MyIsInR5cGUiOiJQdWJsaWNTaGFyZVYyIiwiYWNjZXNzX3R5cGUiOiJwbGFuIn0.DQWm3maI5HbmFFHoYV2W0MIXYhQAPdPURYa1cpywYa0yagslKP9tttOzd904uddvdB4qA1lvHZvFSpL7iB-gFg&utm_source=Flyover&utm_campaign=7b4c5b811b-lowellparklidar&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_9c7e00c1ed-7b4c5b811b-512997748






888


892


896


900


904


908


912


916


888


892


896


900


904


908


912


916


89
5.


4
89


5.
40


89
5.


8
89


5.
85


89
5.


7
89


5.
66


89
5.


6
89


5.
62


89
5.


6
89


5.
58


89
5.


4
89


5.
40


10+00 11+00 12+00 13+00 14+00 15+00 16+00


-0.63% -4.98%


1.77% -0.19%-1.53% 0.00% -0.18%


G
E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E
E


E


E


E


E


E
FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO
FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


M
AT


CH
 L


IN
E 


- S
TA


. 1
6+


00


JA
CKSON S


TR
EET


0 20 4010


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL VIRGIN LAKE TRAIL


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


09360023
SHEET


P1


   DRAWN BY:            Init


   DESIGNED BY:       Init


   CHECKED BY:        Init
Segment C P&P Sheet - Buckingham to JacksonPRELIMINARY


  PLOT DATE: 9/9/2022 12:52 PM, G:\09\09360\09360023\CADD\Construction Documents\VFG -Segment C- (1) - (3).dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


. (608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


EXISTING GRADE PROFILE


PROPOSED SEGMENT C - PROFILE


SLOPE INTERCEPT (TYP.)


APPROX. PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)


EDGE OF PARADISE POND







888


892


896


900


904


908


912


916


89
5.


4
89


5.
40


89
5.


7
89


5.
68


89
5.


6
89


5.
60


89
5.


2
89


5.
21


89
5.


0
89


4.
97


89
5.


2
89


5.
17


89
5.


3
89


5.
28


16+00 17+00 18+00 19+00 20+00 21+00 22+00


0.17%0.87% -0.38% 0.20%


SS


SS


FO


FO


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E
FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


16+00


17+00


18+00 19+00


20+00


21+00


22+00


PC = 18+07.59


N = 427418.36


E = 857723.74


M
id


 =
 1


8+
37


.2
7


N
 =


 4
27


44
7.


47
E 


= 
85


77
28


.5
5


PT
 =


 1
8+


66
.9


4
N


 =
 4


27
47


2.
86


E 
= 


85
77


43
.5


9


M
ATCH LINE - STA. 16+00


M
AT


C
H


 L
IN


E 
- S


TA
. 2


2+
00


0 20 4010


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL VIRGIN LAKE TRAIL


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


09360023
SHEET


P2


   DRAWN BY:            Init


   DESIGNED BY:       Init


   CHECKED BY:        Init
Segment C P&P Sheet - Buckingham to JacksonPRELIMINARY


  PLOT DATE: 9/9/2022 12:52 PM, G:\09\09360\09360023\CADD\Construction Documents\VFG -Segment C- (1) - (3).dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


. (608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


EXISTING GRADE PROFILE


PROPOSED SEGMENT C - PROFILE


SLOPE INTERCEPT (TYP.)


APPROX. PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)


EDGE OF PARADISE POND







888


892


896


900


904


908


912


916


888


892


896


900


904


908


912


916


89
5.


3
89


5.
28


89
5.


4
89


5.
35


89
5.


4
89


5.
39


89
5.


5
89


5.
46


89
5.


6
89


5.
56


89
6.


2
89


6.
24


89
8.


2
89


8.
22


22+00 23+00 24+00 25+00 26+00 27+00 27+85


2.33%


0.08% -0.02% 0.35% -0.77% -2.09% 4.50% 0.18%


G


X


X
X


X
X


X
X


X
X


X


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E
E


E


X


X


X X X X X X


X
X


X
X


X
X


X
X


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


FO
FO FO


FO


FO


FO


SS


G


22+00


23+00


24+00


25+00 26+00


27+00


28+00


PC
 =


 2
5+


05
.7


8
N


 =
 4


27
95


3.
07


E 
= 


85
81


64
.9


1


M
id


 =
 2


5+
62


.7
3


N
 =


 4
28


00
0.


61
E 


= 
85


81
95


.9
1


PT = 26+19.68


N = 428054.95


E = 858212.31


M
AT


C
H


 L
IN


E 
- S


TA
. 2


2+
00


BUCKING
HAM


 RD.0 20 4010


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL VIRGIN LAKE TRAIL


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


09360023
SHEET


P3


   DRAWN BY:            Init


   DESIGNED BY:       Init


   CHECKED BY:        Init
Segment C P&P Sheet - Buckingham to JacksonPRELIMINARY


  PLOT DATE: 9/9/2022 12:52 PM, G:\09\09360\09360023\CADD\Construction Documents\VFG -Segment C- (1) - (3).dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


. (608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


EXISTING GRADE PROFILE


PROPOSED SEGMENT C - PROFILE


SLOPE INTERCEPT (TYP.)


APPROX. PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)


EDGE OF PARADISE POND







884


888


892


896


900


904


908


912


884


888


892


896


900


904


908


912


89
8.


8
89


8.
62


89
6.


2
89


6.
75


89
6.


1
89


6.
01


89
6.


7
89


6.
65


89
7.


0
89


6.
43


89
6.


6
89


6.
33


89
6.


9
89


6.
58


89
7.


03


31+45 32+00 33+00 34+00 35+00 36+00 37+00 37+45


1.01%
-3.40%


-2.30% 1.13%
0.06% -0.38% 0.35% 0.19%


G


G


G


G


W


W


W


X


X


W


31+00


32+00


33+00


34+00


35+00


36+00


37+00


38+00


PC = 32+73.75
N = 428416.36
E = 858367.73


Mid = 32+82.26
N = 428424.25
E = 858370.41


PT = 32+90.77
N = 428428.50
E = 858377.58


PC = 33+38.80


N = 428437.09


E = 858424.84


M
id


 =
 3


3+
49


.0
0


N 
= 


42
84


40
.9


5


E 
= 


85
84


34
.1


9


PT
 =


 3
3+


59
.2


0
N


 =
 4


28
44


8.
33


E 
= 


85
84


41
.1


2


PC
 =


 3
4+


20
.4


4
N


 =
 4


28
50


0.
81


E 
= 


85
84


72
.6


8


M
id


 =
 3


4+
27


.5
1


N
 =


 4
28


50
7.


32


E 
= 


85
84


75
.3


8


PT = 34+34.59


N = 428514.34


E = 858476.08


PC = 35+33.44
N = 428613.07
E = 858471.31


M
id


 =
 3


5+
37


.1
8


N
 =


 4
28


61
6.


78


E 
= 


85
84


71
.7


1


PT = 35+40.92
N = 428620.18
E = 858473.23


PC
 =


 3
6+


59
.9


4
N


 =
 4


28
72


0.
01


E 
= 


85
85


38
.0


2
M


id
 =


 3
6+


85
.4


1


N 
= 


42
87


38
.4


2
E 


= 
85


85
55


.4
3


PT = 37
+10


.88


N = 42
87


49
.42


E = 85
85


78
.25


PC = 37
+77


.39


N = 42
87


66
.99


E = 85
86


42
.39


M
id


 =
 3


8+
06


.7
9


N
 =


 4
28


78
3.


16
E 


= 
85


86
66


.3
3


MATCH LI
NE - S


TA. 3
7+


45


BUCKING
HAM


 RD.


0 20 4010


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL VIRGIN LAKE TRAIL


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


09360023
SHEET


P4


   DRAWN BY:            Init


   DESIGNED BY:       Init


   CHECKED BY:        Init
Segment B P&P Sheet - Roby to BuckinghamPRELIMINARY


  PLOT DATE: 9/9/2022 12:53 PM, G:\09\09360\09360023\CADD\Construction Documents\VFG - Segment B (1) - (2).dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


. (608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


EXISTING GRADE PROFILE


PROPOSED SEGMENT B - PROFILE


SLOPE INTERCEPT (TYP.)


APPROX. PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)


8' CONC. SIDEWALK


will need to watch tie
in to private property
and existing veg.
protection


= necessary tree removal


= impacted tree, removal may be needed







884


888


892


896


900


904


908


912


916


884


888


892


896


900


904


908


912


916


89
7.


0
89


7.
03


89
7.


3
89


7.
35


89
7.


2
89


7.
16


89
7.


3
89


7.
25


89
8.


7
89


8.
68


89
9.


3
89


9.
32


37+45 38+00 39+00 40+00 41+00 42+00 42+76.53


2.41% -1.79% -0.05% 0.20% -0.54%


0.55%
1.26% -1.78% 1.45% -5.68%


2.81%
1.13%


G


D


E


W
W


G G G G
G


G


C
P


C
PE E E E


W
W W W WE


W W


E


E E E E E


G


G G G G


G


W
W


W


W
W


W
W


W
W W W W


W
W E


FO FO FO
FO


FO


FO


FO
SS


SS
SS


S


G


PC = 35+22.65
N = 429320.38
E = 858579.77


M
id


 =
 3


5+
24


.3
4


N
 =


 4
29


32
2.


04
E 


= 
85


85
80


.0
5


37+00


38+00 39+00


40+00


41+00


42+00


42+76.53


PC
 =


 3
6+


59
.9


4


N 
= 


42
87


20
.0


1
E 


= 
85


85
38


.0
2


Mid 
= 36


+85
.41


N = 42
87


38
.42


E = 85
85


55
.43


PT = 37+10.88


N = 428749.42


E = 858578.25


PC = 37+77.39


N = 428766.99


E = 858642.39


M
id 


= 
38


+0
6.


79


N 
= 


42
87


83
.1


6


E 
= 


85
86


66
.3


3


PT
 =


 3
8+


36
.1


9


N
 =


 4
28


81
0.


54


E 
= 


85
86


75
.5


0


PC
 =


 3
9+


54
.9


2


N
 =


 4
28


92
9.


27


E 
= 


85
86


75
.1


0


M
id


 =
 3


9+
73


.3
5


N
 =


 4
28


94
7.


63


E 
= 


85
86


73
.7


3


M
id


 =
 4


0+
11


.2
6


N
 =


 4
28


98
4.


70


E 
= 


85
86


65
.9


5


PT
 =


 4
0+


30
.7


6
N


 =
 4


29
00


4.
16


E 
= 


85
86


65
.5


4


PC
 =


 4
1+


35
.3


7
N


 =
 4


29
10


8.
43


E 
= 


85
86


73
.8


5


M
id


 =
 4


1+
63


.4
2


N
 =


 4
29


13
6.


39


E 
= 


85
86


72
.8


5


M
id


 =
 4


2+
13


.2
5


N
 =


 4
29


18
3.


96


E 
= 


85
86


58
.4


7


PT
 =


 4
2+


35
.0


2
N


 =
 4


29
20


5.
65


E 
= 


85
86


57
.2


7


MATCH LINE - STA. 37+45


R
O


BY R
O


AD


0 20 4010


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL VIRGIN LAKE TRAIL


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


09360023
SHEET


P5


   DRAWN BY:            Init


   DESIGNED BY:       Init


   CHECKED BY:        Init
Segment B P&P Sheet - Roby to BuckinghamPRELIMINARY


  PLOT DATE: 9/9/2022 12:53 PM, G:\09\09360\09360023\CADD\Construction Documents\VFG - Segment B (1) - (2).dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


. (608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


EXISTING GRADE PROFILE


PROPOSED SEGMENT B - PROFILE


SLOPE INTERCEPT (TYP.)


APPROX. PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)


6' CONC. SIDEWALK


BLDG.


SWALE
OR
CULVERT


SWALE
OR
CULVERT







884


888


892


896


900


904


908


912


90
0.


1
90


0.
06


89
2.


5
89


2.
47


89
0.


0
88


9.
97


89
0.


7
89


0.
74


88
9.


1
88


9.
06


88
9.


6
88


9.
63


35+00 36+00 37+00 38+00 39+00 40+00 41+00


5.92%


6.05% -4.96%


-3.35% -0.02%
-1.60%


-3.12% 3.29%


2.55%


-7.82%


-0.23%
0.36%


7.90%


W


W


W


W


W


E


E


FO


FO


FO


SS


SS


SS


SS


SS


SS


SS


SS


35+00


36+00


37+00


38+00


39+00


40+00


41+00


PC
 =


 4
0+


55
.7


7


N
 =


 4
29


68
4.


24


E 
= 


85
82


83
.1


6


PC = 37+64.60


N = 429503.69


E = 858507.33


PC = 35+72.45


N = 429366.81


E = 858597.66


PC = 35+22.65
N = 429320.38
E = 858579.77


PT
 =


 3
8+


17
.4


1


N
 =


 4
29


52
4.


83


E 
= 


85
84


60
.1


3


PT = 37+60.33


N = 429503.40


E = 858511.59


PT = 35+26.04
N = 429323.66
E = 858580.56


M
id


 =
 4


1+
59


.1
3


N 
= 


42
97


70
.9


6
E 


= 
85


82
30


.4
3


M
id = 37+91.00


N = 429510.06


E = 858481.85


M
id


 =
 3


6+
66


.3
9


N
 =


 4
29


45
6.


94
E 


= 
85


85
89


.2
9


Mid = 35+24.34


N = 429322.04


E = 858580.05


M
id


 =
 3


9+
35


.8
0


N
 =


 4
29


60
7.


40


E 
= 


85
83


75
.2


9


M
AT


C
H


 L
IN


E 
- S


TA
. 4


1+
00


ROBY R
OAD


0 20 4010


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL VIRGIN LAKE TRAIL


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


09360023
SHEET


P6


   DRAWN BY:            Init


   DESIGNED BY:       Init


   CHECKED BY:        Init
Segment A P&P Sheet Virgin Lake to RobyPRELIMINARY


  PLOT DATE: 9/9/2022 12:54 PM, G:\09\09360\09360023\CADD\Construction Documents\VFG - Segment A - (1) - (1).dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


. (608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


EXISTING GRADE PROFILE


PROPOSED SEGMENT A PROFILE


SLOPE INTERCEPT (TYP.)


APPROX. PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)


EDGE OF VIRGIN LAKE WETLAND


possible retaining wall
(boulder?) to reduce
cut profile.


= necessary tree removal


= impacted tree, removal may be needed







884


888


892


896


900


904


908


912


884


888


892


896


900


904


908


912


88
9.


6
88


9.
63


89
0.


0
89


0.
02


89
0.


9
89


0.
91


89
5.


3
89


5.
33


90
1.


6
90


1.
60


41+00 42+00 43+00 44+00 45+00


0.37% 0.76% 0.50%
1.69%


2.00%


8.00%


7.50%


CB


CP


CP


CP


40
+0


0
41+00


42+00


43+00


44+00


45
+0


0


PC
 =


 4
3+


59
.5


2


N 
= 


42
99


59
.3


1


E 
= 


85
82


83
.9


6


PC = 40+55.77


N = 429684.24


E = 858283.16


PT = 44+96.96N = 430062.27E = 858227.05


PT
 =


 4
2+


62
.5


0


N 
= 


42
98


71
.7


8


E 
= 


85
82


42
.1


1


M
id = 44+28.24


N = 430025.44


E = 858282.01


M
id


 =
 4


1+
59


.1
3


N
 =


 4
29


77
0.


96


E 
= 


85
82


30
.4


3


Mid = 39+35.80


N = 429607.40


E = 858375.29


M
ATCH LINE - STA. 41+00


0 20 4010


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL VIRGIN LAKE TRAIL


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


09360023
SHEET


P7


   DRAWN BY:            Init


   DESIGNED BY:       Init


   CHECKED BY:        Init
Segment A P&P Sheet Virgin Lake to RobyPRELIMINARY


  PLOT DATE: 9/9/2022 12:54 PM, G:\09\09360\09360023\CADD\Construction Documents\VFG - Segment A - (1) - (1).dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


. (608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


EXISTING GRADE PROFILE


PROPOSED SEGMENT A PROFILE


SLOPE INTERCEPT (TYP.)


APPROX. PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)


EDGE OF VIRGIN LAKE WETLAND


EXISTING TRAIL PROFILE


= necessary tree removal


= impacted tree, removal may be needed





		Sheets and Views

		P1 Segment C P&P Sheet - Buckingham to Jackson

		P2 Segment C P&P Sheet - Buckingham to Jackson

		P3 Segment C P&P Sheet - Buckingham to Jackson

		P4 Segment B P&P Sheet - Roby to Buckingham

		P5 Segment B P&P Sheet - Roby to Buckingham

		P6 Segment A P&P Sheet Virgin Lake to Roby

		P7 Segment A P&P Sheet Virgin Lake to Roby





